THE WHITE HOUSE
WASHINGTON, D.C.

June 16, 2000

Dear M. Steiner:

We are now on the verge of an historic acconplishnment, for

whi ch the Chancell or’ s | eadershi p has been indi spensable. W
have agreed upon a DM 10 billion capped fund for the
resolution of slave and forced | abor clainms and for all other
wrongs comritted by German conpani es arising out of the Nazi-
era. W have al so agreed upon the precise allocation of the
DM 10 billion to the various types of clains and for a Future
Fund. We have now resolved the difficult issue of
reparations. This letter clarifies the exchange of
correspondence between the parties and states the fina
position of the Adm nistration on |egal closure.

Let us reiterate on behalf of the President, that the
President and the Adm nistration are conmtted, as provided
for in the proposed executive agreenent, to enduring and all -
enbraci ng | egal peace for CGernman conpanies, for present and
for future cases, for consensual and non-consensual cases. W
agreed to conmt in the agreenent to file U S. statenents of
interest in U S courts, stating, anong other things, the U S
foreign policy interests in dismssal. This was in the
President’s Decenber 13 letter to the Chancellor. The
Chancel | or accepted the President’s letter as the basis for

| egal closure, stating that “I greatly wel cone the conm tnent
of the U S. Adnministration to state that the dism ssal of all
ongoi ng and future |awsuits would be in its foreign-policy
interest.”

We have since strengthened this commtnent to give Gernan
conpani es even greater confort against future suits. Let us
review these and then offer our own assurances on behal f of
the President:

« W have strengthened the wording of the Elenents of the
Statenent of Interest as Count Lanbsdorff requested of
Deputy Secretary Ei zenstat.

* We have strengthened the | anguage in the Elenents of the
Statenent of Interest as Gernan conpani es suggested by
goi ng beyond the President’s letter so that it now reads
that it would be in the foreign policy interests of the
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United States for the Foundation “to be” the exclusive
remedy for clains agai nst German conpani es, rather than
that the Foundation “should be regarded” as the exclusive
remedy.

e« At our own initiative, to further strengthen our
Statement of Interest, we have stated that the President
has concl uded that dism ssal of cases agai nst German
conpani es would be in the foreign policy interests of the
United States, rather than sinply asserting that it was
in the foreign policy interests of the United States.

e Further, at our initiative, we will have the Secretary of
State issue a formal statenment of U S. foreign policy
enphasi zing our strong interests in the German Foundati on
as the exclusive renmedy and forumfor clains and strongly
favoring dism ssal of Nazi-era cases brought agai nst
German conpani es that could threaten it. This will be
acconpani ed by a declaration by Deputy Secretary
Ei zenstat that these negotiations, which have resulted in
the Executive Agreenent, continue a 55-year effort by the
United States governnent to work with the German
governnment to address the consequences of the Nazi-era
and World War 11.

We want to add our assurances, on the President’s behalf. W
have worked together with you to develop this historic Gernman
initiative. W do not wish to take any action that woul d

perpetuate present or future cases. Indeed, it wll be the
enduring and high interest of the United States to support
efforts to achieve disnmssal of all Wrld War Il-era cases,

and the United States wll act accordingly. To do otherw se
woul d threaten the very Foundation Initiative to which all of
us, including the President and Chancel |l or, have devoted so
much tinme and effort. W wll state in our Statenent of
Interest and in the Executive Agreenent that for the |ast 55
years the United States has sought to work with Germany to
address the consequences of the Nazi-era and Wrld War |
through political and governnental acts between the United
States and Germany. Because the President believes that it is
in the enduring and high interest of the United States, the
Departnment of Justice will state to a court that the dism ssa
of all cases is in our foreign policy interests, and w |
affirmatively recommend di sm ssal on any valid | egal ground,
whi ch, under the United States system of jurisprudence is for
the U S. courts to determ ne. Mreover, the United Sl ates

will take no legal position in U S. courts on pending and
future cases which would itself preclude dism ssal of these
cases, and wll, in fact, enunerate the real, |egal hurdles

plaintiffs face.



We appreciate your confirmati on on behalf of both the German
Governnment and German conpani es that these assurances resol ve
this inportant issue.

Si ncerely,

Samuel R Berger Bet h Nol an
Assistant to the President for Counsel to the President
Nati onal Security Affairs

The Honorabl e M chael Steiner
Nat i onal Security Assi stant
Ofice of the Federal Chancell or
Federal Republic of Germany
Berlin



